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building a bus body over the whole frame front to rear from the other chassis. This bus carried 30 to 32
students. This unit was soon nicknamed the “Shoebox” but it served for three or four years until a
factory-built Wayne Body on a 1946 Fargo Classic Imported from the USA. It was only a year or two later
when a second bus was needed and Superior Bus was bought. It also came from the United States on a
1947 KB6 International Chassis. These were both considered safety bus chassis due to the rounded style
roofs.

It was about now when the cattle trucking moved to the US Export of Purebred and Grade cattle to the
United States. Having a good straight truck for the long haul, we found the need for a unit to haul here
in Ontario for slaughter cattle. While working with a couple local drivers the need for a bigger unit arose.
At this time, father set about to build one. On an Old Single Axle Trailer frame, he took the body from
the “Old Shoebox” bus and mounted it on the trailer after cutting in half and filling the space left. The
trailer was about 28 or 30 feet long with some reinforcing cross members and up rights. Therefore, we
were able to have a suitable cattle trailer with the rear having suitable gates to load and unload cattle.
This was set up with vacuum breaks on the trailer, the standard at that time. The landing gear was just a
set of stands and some handy blocks. This was satisfactory as long as the trailer was blocked front and
rear when unhooking or over went the blocks creating a problem to of hooking later on. This
“homemade trailer”, as was on the Ownership Card, lasted two or three years until a new King Stake and
Rack 30-foot Single Axle trailer with vacuum brakes was purchased from King Trailer in Woodstock. King
was building all types of trailers at this time (flat beds, hydraulic dump trailers and low bays). Another
line of work coming along at this time was drawing coal from Port Burwell for Valley Camp and Empire
Hanna to plants and hospitals within fifty miles of Mount Elgin.

This takes us in to Mid-50’s to Early 60’s when a new Diamond T straight truck replaced the Old
International as we were hauling several lots of cattle and horses to the United States. The 30-foot King
trailer was pulled by a heavier Diamond T 509 Model driven by my older brother, Keith. Horses went to
New Jersey for export to Belgium. While still drawing coal, the cattle export dried up and more
equipment concentrated on drawing coal and gravel. Another concept was opening up with grain from
Goderich and Sarnia elevators to local co-ops and mills all through the district. Several days a week,
these trucks were drawing two loads a day beginning at 4:00am and working to 6:00pm or later at night.
A new era was beginning in Ontario with the appearance of “A” Style Trains so bigger tractors were
needed with the start of Diesel Highway Tractors. The first were small compared to today but the cost
then for fuel was minimal compared to gasoline which used more and was more expensive than diesel.
Sometime in 1960 or 1961, Dad had an idea about the birth of “B” Style Trains. He took his idea to King
Trailer who built the first “B” Train Hydraulic Dump Trains — 21 feet and 17 feet respectively giving 48
feet of carrying capacity or a load of 40 to 42 tons.

It was during this period that United Co-operatives of Ontario had built a fertilizer plant in nearby
Tillsonburg and being nearby proved a lucrative fill for the dwindling coal hauls. These bulk fertilizer
loads came from Lakeport sites where bulk fertilizer was offloaded from lake boats on docks to be
drawn away by trucks to area co-ops and other plants to be blended and mixed for area farmers or co-
op stores. At this point in time, we had three or four trains, comprising of two dump trailers and a
converter dolly and one “B” trailer used exclusively for fertilizer and grain from Lakeport Elevators to
area feed and fertilizer plants.

It was in this interim that we had obtained and worked a sand and gravel operation over in North
Norwich. We worked this for three or four years and bought a used crusher and two large power shovels
to feed the crusher and load trucks. In about the fourth or fifth year this was sold to Cayuga
Construction and Materials of Woodstock who continued working the operation for a few years. This
brought an end to our quarrying operation that was overseen by my younger brother, Irvin Jr.

During this period, other concepts of general trucking were carried out. We had and used three Triple
Decker Hogs Pots or Possum Bellies. Trailers that drew hogs from an O.P.M.B. Assembly yard at our
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village and Burford to all Ontario Meat Plants whenever a load was sold through to O.P.M.B. Board in
Toronto to all processing plants in United States in Michigan, Ohio, Indiana, Pennsylvania and other
states where processors were located. These trailers could be converted to draw cattle to Kitchener,
Burlington and Toronto. Other types of trailers used were flat beds and vans were used to draw loads of
bagged fertilizer from U.C.O. Plant in Tillsonburg and Delhi to Co-op Facilities Stores all over Southern
Ontario. One special Low Boy type trailer was used exclusively for U.C.O. Tillsonburg where they
handled, sold and serviced bulk fertilizer application equipment such as spreaders, aqua-ammonia
applicators and bulk carriers used by district plants or stores to customers’ farms. This special trailer
could draw or carry three of these on one load and had special hydraulics for ease of loading or
unloading assisted only by a farm tractor.

Also at this time, we hauled boxes, 4’ by 4’ crates, from local cucumbers grading stations to Bicks Pickles
in Scarborough. In the harvest season, usually, we ran three units daily carrying 40 to 42 tons of
cucumbers from station to processor. There was also a plant in Dunnville and it was not unlikely to do an
Inter-Plant load to Scarborough. This was quite seasonal and lasted only six to eight weeks in the fall
harvest season each year.

As some of these operations ceased to exist, we had to find work elsewhere. Case in point, Co-op at
Tillsonburg closed and was no longer. U.C.0O. was sold to Farm Services Stores and quit this type of
fertilizer operation and we were no longer needed but about this time. We started to draw asphalt and
gravel for Huron Construction in Chatham through a haulage broker in London named Jack Hewitt who
was requested to get extra trucks for these jobs. Several summers found us as far away as Windsor
working for construction in those areas. Although, we were drawing gravel, we still kept on drawing
grain and feed for local mills in the area such as Milling and feed Production. We still hauled some bulk
fertilizer to different Co-ops still in operation such as Delhi, Norwich, Woodstock and several Southern
Ontario Farm Service Operations. There was also a growing trend for Liquid Fertilizer which utilized
tanker type equipment to Farm Service Operations from Lakeside Storage Areas such as Sarnia and Port
Stanley, an Old Coal Dock now switched to tank storage of 28% aqua-ammonia. One day you might have
hauled dry bulk and the next it would be liquid 28% picked up at the same source and delivered to same
store only using different trailers.

As this bulk hauling went along some of our work began to disappear because of Conglomerate Farms at
the time. These farmers began to buy their own equipment and draw their own grain and fertilizer. Due
to the size of harvesting equipment these same farmers were doing custom work as Deregulation and
the commercial plates came in to play. These custom people took over the grain and feed business and
there was no longer a need for dump trailers as these were phased out by the eventful use of Hopper
Bottom Equipment which were much lighter and easier to maintain as no hydraulics were needed. As
this phase carried on, some big custom farmers turned to full-fledged trucking companies in bulk grain
and fertilizers.

This being the case, we started looking elsewhere for work and were for a period of time were able to
go to a sand and gravel operation with about four sets of Hopper Trains for highway shouldering after
fresh paving was completed. We even went as far to build a couple sets of trains with air gates a major
improvement over the old mechanical operated types.

This brings us to the late 1980’s and early nineties when we were slowly switching to international
freight as requested by a couple of plants in Tillsonburg. These loads required a lot of paper work and
were a problem at the border crossings as people were unfamiliar with these types of loads going to
their shippers US counterpart and sometimes these drivers spent two or three hours at the border
before being cleared. As time went on and more US traffic increased new regulations were brought in
and border crossings eventually became routine and one could be cleared in less than % of an hour. We
eventually picked up a couple of auto parts shipper customers and they did most of the paperwork.
Having this type of load on, sealed trailers eliminated a lot of hold ups at border crossings. The next
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problem with freight hauling was traffic at the border crossings. As more and more people were getting
into this kind of work. The biggest problems for the trucks were the line ups at the bridge. This brought
about the “Fast” labeled carriers and special driver cards for certain types of loads. These “Fast” labeled
carriers used a special lane and trucks went along much quicker.

In the mid to late nineties, we worked under Verspeeten and got some experience there in freight
forwarding. In the late nineties, we picked up an account with a freight broker, Transfreight, and moved
into hauling automotive parts to the United States and we are still with them today. The fleet now
comprises of two historic tractors of the 1974 Model year —one, Dodge Conventional 950 Tandem with
350 Cummins Power 13 speed transmission and forty-four-thousand-pound rear suspension with Eaton
axles 3:67 ratio. Respectively, the second is a Diamond Reo 1974 Cab-over with the same running year
set-up. They both have 12.5-pound front axles and Ross power steering. These trucks were taken to the
American Historic Truck Show in Hutchinson, Kansas May 23 to 26, 2008.

The operating equipment consists of about twelve highway tractors and three or four owner-operators.
We own 18 or 20 trailers as well as interchange with 12 or 15 Transfreight Trailers hauling loads from
Toyota in Cambridge and other plants in the district to the USA.

Another of father’s accomplishments was the construction of the present Prouse Transport Ltd building
on the corner of Plank Line and Mount Elgin Road West. We had moved from the old house east of the
present store to the old house or Roadhouse on the corner that was the former home of Dr. Morris, our
local doctor. The house was complete with a woodshed on the north end which served as a place to
store wood for the house which was heated by a kitchen stove and a Quebec heater in the front room.
The kitchen, dining room and living room were along the front of the house. At the rear of the house
were four rooms that served as bedrooms. A small centre room contained a bathtub. The water was
heated in a high cooper vessel on the kitchen stove. This occurred usually once or twice a week to fill the
tub for our twice weekly baths. With the growth of Irvin C. Prouse and Sons, a garage next door to the
north was bought from Henry Greason and was used to service and store the fleet. It was a two-story
affair with two apartments upstairs.

This building was demolished to be replaced by the present building. It was to be huge compared to
current standards at that time. It was to be sixty by ninety feet and twelve feet high. The first floor was
poured concrete mixed in an old % yard cement mixer fed. The forms were two by twelve planks ten to
twelve feet long. How the concrete got in the form eludes me at this time as we were a young family
going to school at the time.

| do remember the floor for the second story was held up by four ten-inch round steel wall casings
twelve feet long filled with concrete. The mixed cement was placed in five-gallon cans manually and
placed on a platform affixed to a dump truck body. This was raised up to be dumped into the upright
steel columns. These are still there to this day. Six ten by eight inch | beams were used to create the
second floor. Today there are two two-bedroom apartments and the company office upstairs.

One interesting point is that it has been 75 years since Dad began the haulage business. First, horses
were used and then he switched to motorized vehicles. He accomplished all of this and I do not think he
had anymore than a grade eight education and a short apprenticeship on Internal Construction and Gas
Engines by Harry Greason.

Until the 1950’s, trucking was regulated by the Public Commercial Vehicle Act or P.C.V. and was all done
on a system of different letters for different commodities. “C” was general freight and “F” was different
farm needs such as feed, livestock, hay or straw. Another class “FS” was gravel and other remaining
commodities used on farms. Class “D” was used for milk and other bulk commodities that were usually
drawn from one shipper to one consignee. Of course, this was deregulated and thrown wide open in
1953 or 1955. At this time, all that was needed were commercial plates and equipment had to carry
current safety stickers. Drivers must also have AZ authority and this of course meant air brake
knowledge.
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Wife Mary Anne died of a heart attack age 44.

“Husband of Mary Ann (Wesley) Lyman and son of Osman Prouse Lyman, Sr and Julia (Turner) Lyman.

Osman P. "Pete” Lyman, Jr., 69, of 1665 Kathwood Road, died Monday in Baptist Hospital.

Born in Atlanta, GA., he was a son of the late Osman P. and Julia Turner Lyman.

He was a retired employee of the Columbia Optical Supply Co., a member of Trinity Cathedral and a graduate of
George Tech University. He was a former member of the board of directors of Optical Laboratories Association,
former president of the Southeastern Optical Laboratories Association and a former member of the Columbia
Rotary Club.”

Internet Obituary

Surviving is a daughter, Mrs. Janet L. Simon Heinhold of North Augusta B 1941 - D 2023; a son, Stephen
W. Lyman of Columbia B 1946; two sisters, Mrs. Claude H. Caston and Mrs. Sue H. Bazemore of
Columbia; a brother, Julian T. Lyman of Orangeburg; and four grandchildren. Son Stephen carried on the
optical business as president of the Columbia Optical Supply Ltd.

Children of Osman Prouse Lyman Sr and Julie Turner

Child: Julian Turner “JT” B 18 Sept 1911 Atlanta
D 04 Apr 2008 Orangeburg, S Carolina
Spouse: Elizabeth Casey B 24 May 1913 Anderson S Carolina

D 10 June 1998 Orangeburg S Carolina
This man never stood still.

Orangeburg - Funeral services for Julian Turner Lyman Sr.,96, of 1000 Methodist Oaks Drive, Orangeburg, will be
held 2 p.m. Saturday, April 12, 2008, at Nancy Freeman Stringer Chapel with the Rev. James McGee officiating.
Burial will be held in Crestlawn Memorial Gardens, Orangeburg. Mr. Lyman died Friday, April 4. He was born
September 18, 1911. "J.T." as everybody knew Julian Turner Lyman, Sr., was all his life one of those people just
about everyone liked. People trusted J.T. to be fair. And it did not matter what color you were or whether you had a
lot of education or money - they all sought him out. But technology made him tick. if something ran on electricity J.
T. could figure it out, maintain it, and make it work better. And people also came to J.T. for someone who could
solve technical problems which baffled most folks. And he did not disappoint. About what you might expect for a
1934 Cum Laude Graduate from the University of South Carolina, one of a small number with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Electrical Engineering, when the whole field was an unfolding experiment; before satellites, computers
and the Internet. In his home his workshop was his "happy place,” with soldering irons and haif assembled devices
and projects everywhere - like a day in the 1950s when he showed his three sons one of the first-generation
photoelectric cells that could absorb sunlight and turn it into electricity. He lit up a small bulb! And a patriot. In
1937 J. T. joined the Naval Reserve as an ordinary Seaman. With war clouds gathering, the Navy realized what they
had, and in 1940 Mr. Lyman was appointed an Ensign, entered active duty in early 1941 and soon served as Gjficer
in Charge of the Navy Radio School, Charleston Navy Yard. He oversaw the training of hundreds of radiomen for our
Naval forces. In 1943, Mr. Lyman was assigned to the Panama Canal Zone where he served as second in command
over the Navy's second largest transmitting station, facilitating communications between the Pentagon, Fleet
Atlantic and Fleet Pacific. He was demobilized in September 1945, continued in the Naval Reserve, and in 1971
retired as a Lieutenant Commander. He was always proud he joined up BEFORE Pearl Harbor. In 1935, when she
finished USC in fine Arts, Dad married the love of his life, Elizabeth Casey Lyman of Anderson, South Carolina. After
the War J.T. came home to South Carolina, but engineering work was scarce so for a time he took a job in a whiskey
distribution business, which as he said, almost resulted in his mother "disowning me"! As the post-war boom arose
in South Carolina, J.T. found work in power line engineering, then years of telephone engineering including original
design work for Hilton Head Island, and later still in mechanical engineering with propane-air mixing equipment.
Starting in the 1960s and he part-owned radio station WORG, often trouble-shooting broadcast issues. J. T. and
Elizabeth Casey Lyman had three children, Turner, born during World War Il ot the U.S. Naval Hospital in 1943 in
Charleston, and two "baby boomers" Phillip, born in 1947 and Joseph (Jody) born in 1951, both in Orangeburg.
Elizabeth passed in mid-1998, and cancer took Jody in 2004. Throughout his retirement years Mr. Lyman was a
devoted HAM radio Operator, call sign W4FMZ, and member of the Edisto Amateur Radio Society, and the
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